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TIIIJ IflNGDOII CHAIÈÏIIB SCHOOI OF
I2I WEST CHURCH STREET

BLACKWOOD, NJ O8OI2

Ms. Riscee Langhorne
Business Administrator/

Board Secretary

LI}ADIIIìSHIID

Telephone: (856) 232-0100

January 25,2019

Members of the Board of Trustees of
The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership

County of Camden
121 West Church Street
Blackwood, NJ 08012

Dear Board Members,

The initial comprehensive annual financial report of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
the management of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
m¿mner designed to present fairly the final position and results of operations of the various funds
of the Charter School. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the Charter School's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections as follows:
o The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Charter School's

organizational chart and a list ofprincipal officials.
o The financial section includes the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as

the auditor's report thereon.
o The statistical section includes the first fiscal year of unaudited data.
o The charter school is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with

the provisions of Title 2 CFR 20O-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), "Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Prof,rt Organizations" and the State Treasury
Circular Letter 15-08 OMB, " Single Audit Policy for recipients of federal grants,
State grants and state aid payments". Information related to this single audit, including
the auditor's report on intemal control and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit
section of this report.
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1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the Government Standards Board (GASB) as established by GASB Statement No.14.
All funds of the Charter school are included in this report The Kingdom Charter School of
Leadership's Board of Trustees and it's school constitute the Charter School's reporting entity.

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership is responsible for providing a thorough and efficient
educational system for students in grades taught at the one school maintained. The Charter
School completed the2017 - 2018 fiscal year with an enrollment of 205 elementary school
students.

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Gloucester Township area is a rural community in Camden County and is presently
considered to possess a stable economy.

Initiatives

The charter school has developed a comprehensive strategic plan to support its mission and
vision and serve as a blueprint for the achievement of its goals. The plan includes objectives such
as pupil achievement, staff development and technology in the classroom.

In addition, the financial condition of the District has improved during the2017-I8 school year.

3. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
control designed to ensure that the assets of the Charter School are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accountingdata are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurancerecognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the Charter School also is
responsible for ensuringthat adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. Internal control is also subject to
periodic evaluation by the Charter School management.

As part of the Charter School's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of internal control, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the Charter School has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.
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4. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the Charter School maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund
and the special revenue fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected
in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as

reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are
reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2018.

5. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The Charter School's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as

promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system
of the Charter School is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to
the Financial Statements." Note 2.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, and fidelity bonds.

7. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm ofNightlinger, Colavita and Volpa, Pa. was appointed
by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of the Title2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards(Uniform Guidance), and State of
New Jersey Treasury Circular 15-08 OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and combining
and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report.
The auditor's report related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of
this report.
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8. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of The Kingdom Charter School of
Leadership Board of Trustees for their concem in providing fiscal accountability to the
community and conhibuting their full support to the development and maintenance of our
frnancial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
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Respectfu lly submitted,

/ ll Å r-,/,
VlØ*ç1-{rrr<

U
Ms. Riscee Langhorne
Business AdminiskatorlBoard Secretarv
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NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A P r ofess i o nal A s s o c iat io n

Ce rtifie d P u b lic Acco u nta nt s
991 S. Black Horse Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colovìta,net

INDEPBNDENT AUDITORIS REPORT

To The Members of
The Board of Trustees
The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
County Of Camden, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statgments

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Trustees of the Kingdom Charter School of
Leadership in the County of Camden, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related
notes to the f,rnancial statements, which collectively comprise the Charter School's basic f,rnancial statements, as listed in
the table of contents.

Manaeement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilify

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Administration and Finance, Department of Education, State of
New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. I¡r making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of Trustees, in the County of Camden, State of New
Jersey, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supp I ementary Info rmati on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
suff,rcient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of Trustee's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic f,inancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

NIGHTLINGE& COLAVITA & VOLPA A P rofessio nal Associatio n C e rtifie d P u b lic Acco u nta nts
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Other Reportinq Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 25,2019 on our
consideration of the Kingdom Charter School of Leadership's Board of Trustees intemal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Kingdom Charter
School of Leadership's Board of Education's of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results ofour audit.

Respectfu lly submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, PA

No.915
January 25,2019

Rafmoñd Colavita, C.P . K, FtJvlIW.
Licensed Public School Accountant

NIGHTLINGER COLAVITÄ & VOLPA A Pr ofe s sío na I A s s o c iøtio n C e rtÍfie d Pub lÍc Acco u nta nts
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30. 2018

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership's financial performance
provides an overall review of the School's financial activities for the initial fiscal year ended June 30,
2018. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School's financial performance as a
whole; readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to
enhance their understanding of the School's financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2018 are as follows:

'! The 2018 school year was the seventh year of operations and educated students from Kindergarten
through Fifth Grade.

* Total revenues of the school were $3,597,895, of which general revenues accounted for
92,868,209 or 79.7o/o of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for
services, operating grants, contributions, and capital grants accounted for $729,686 or 20.3o/o

percent of all Revenues.

* Total net position of governmental activities at the year was 51,295,074.

* The School had $3,510,644 in total expenses, of which 5729,686 were offset by program specific
charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily state and federal aid)
were adequate to provide for these programs.

* The General Fund had$2,926,979 in revenues and $2,860,795 in expenditures. The General
Fund's balance, as of June 30, 2018 was $404,317.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements arc organized so the reader can understand The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership as a
financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly
detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School, presenting both an aggregate view of the School's finances and alonger-term view of those
finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.
In the case of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership, the General Fund is by far the most significant
tund.
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Reporting the School as a Whole

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School to provide programs and
activities, the view of the School as a whole looks at all fìnancial transactions and asks the question,
"How did we do financially during 2018?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting
takes into account, all ofthe current year's revenues and expenses regardless ofwhen cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the School's net position and changes in those assets. This change in net
position is important because it tells the reader that, for the School as a whole, the financial positions of
the School has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors,
some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the property tax base of the School's resident
districts, current laws in New Jersey concerning revenue growth, facility condition, required educational
programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. the School is divided into two distinct
kinds of activities:

* Governmental Activities - All of the School's programs and services are reported here including,
but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricul ar activities.

* Business - Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service, Summer Enrichment
and Before and After Care enterprise funds are reported as business activity.

Reporting the School's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School's major (all) funds begins on page 22. Fund financial reports provide detailed
information about the School's major funds. The School uses many funds to account for a multitude of
financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the School's most significant
funds. The School's major governmental funds are the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out
of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the School's general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that canbe spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.
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Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore these
statements are essentiallv the same.

The School as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School's net position for the years ended 2018 and2017 in accordance
with GASB Statement 34. The following net position comparisons are for the years ended in2018 and
2017.

Table 1

Net Position

20r8 2017
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Rescources

Liabilites
Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue
Due to Other Governments
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Rescources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt
Restricted - Escrow Fund
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

1,53 9,3 gg 1,594,416

429,734
170,r77
939,078

3 1 8,136

330,323

945,957

191,118 26r,337

20,9r5
32

80,973
124,610

33,922

224,900

154,989

226,530 4T3,8TT

207,903 234,r19

939,078
75,000

280,996

945,957

60,000
201,866

s r,295,074 S 1,207,923
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Table 2 shows the changes in net position from fiscal years 2018 and2017, in accordance with GASB
Statement 34. The following comparison of changes in net position, represent datafor the years ended in
2018 and20l7.
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87,251 $ 79,357

The School's total revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $3,597,895, of which net
governmental activity revenues were $3,412,839. As a charter school, voter approval for the School
operations is not required in New Jersey. Property taxes made up 34.60/o of revenues for governmental
activities of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership school. Federal, State and Local grants
accounted for 65.10/o and other revenue made up .3o/o. The school's total expenses were $3,510,644, of
which the net cost of governmental activity expenses were $2,822,528 or 80.4o/o. In addition,
instructional expenses comprises 32.5% of governmental expenses, while support services made up
65.9% and the remaining 1.6%orcpresents depreciation.
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The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net
cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the School's resident district taxpayers by each of
these functions.

Table 3

Total Cost of
Services 2018

$ 1,09s,489 I

NetCostof Total Costof Net Cost of
Services 201 8 Services 2017 Services 2017

Instruction
Support services

Health Servicæ

Schoo I Administ ¡ative Services

General and Business Administraf ir
Employee Benefits

Other

1,095,489 $ 1,085,305 $

108,330 122,090

681,026 1,722,681

926,871 456,898

(45,146) 29r,474
55,958 54,731

108,330

791,162
926,87r

397,931

5 5,95 8

1,085,305

122,090

1,029,527

456,898

(160,350)

54,731

Total Expenses s 3,375,741 $ 2,922,529 S 3,r33,r79 2,599201

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the School.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research, development and
evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as

well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the School which are
designated to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or a
combination of these for the pu{poses of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other
related charges to liabilities of the School.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortízalion.
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the School's business-type activities (food service program and extended day program)
were comprised of charges for services.

t' The Food Service Program received a Board subsidy of $8,583 during the 2017-18 school year, to
offset the excess of expenses over revenues. Total food service costs were $99,507.

* Charges paid by patrons for daily food services were 57,324.

* Extended Day revenues \ /ere 567,625 and Extended Day expenses were $27,544.

* Summer Enrichment revenues were $17,924 and Summer Enrichment expenses were $7,852.
*

The School's Funds

Information about the School's major funds starts on page 22. These funds are accounted for using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds (i.e., general and special revenue funds
presented in the fund-based statements) had total revenues of $3,037,115 and expenditures of $2,970,931.
The net positive change in the General Fund balance, after transfers to other funds, was 57,601. This
result shows that the School was able to meet current operating costs, without the need for additional
funds.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,
the School continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules
present a summary of the revenues of the goveÍrmental funds (excluding capital projects) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior
year revenues.

Increase/

Percent (Decrease)

AmourÍ of Tctal from20l7

Percent

lncrease
Revenrre

I¡cal Sorces $

State Sorrces

Federal Sources

Total $ 3937,rr5 100% $ 102,297

1201,256
1J25,723

110,136

39.6%S
s6.8%

3.6%

4,456
40,849

16,982

3.8%

2.4%

18.2%

3.s%

The increase in Local Sources is attributed to a, increase in the local tax lew from sending districts of
524,413 and other miscellaneous revenue of $20,043.

The increase in State Sources is due to an increase in on-behalf pensions and social security
reimbursements of $63,554, offset by decrease of the state share in the local tax levy of $5,461 and
categorical state aid of 517,244.

The increase in Federal Sources represents the net increase in various federal awards.
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The following schedule presents a summary of general fund and special revenue fund expenditures for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 20T8, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in
relation to prior year expenditures.

Expenditures Amount
Percent

of Total

Increase/
(IÞcrease)

from2017

Cunent:

Instuction
Healttr Services

Child StudyTe¿m

Geneml Admini strati ve Expense s

School Adminisfative Expenses

CryitaJ,Outlay

Total

1,095,489

108,330

34,438

926,87r

756,724

49,079

36.9% S

3.6%

r.2%
31.2%

25.5%

r.6%

10,184

(r3,760)
y,438

4@,973

(365,957)

(25,241)

Percent

Increase

(Decrease)

0.9%

-tt.3%
T00.0%

r02.9%

-32.6%

-34.0%

3.8%2,970,931 100% $ r@.637

The overall increase in Instructional expenditures was the result of an increase in salaries of $14,504,
offset by a decrease in undistributed expenditures of $4,320.

The Health Services expenditures decreased by $13,760 and Child Study Team expenses were
$34,438.

General and School Administrative expenditures had anet increase of $104,016, resultingin atotal
increase of 5124,694 in Support Service expenses.

The capital outlay expenditures are attributed to building improvements, which decreased by 525,24L

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School's Budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accountins. The most sisrificant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the fiscal year 2018, the School amended its General Fund budget as needed.

The School uses program based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to tightly control
total program budgets but provide flexibility for program management.

* Staffing based on student needs.
* Costs for student transportation both in regular education and special education.
* Costs for maintenance and operations
* Changes in appropriations to prevent budget oveffuns.
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While the School's final budget for the general fund anticipated that revenues and expenditures would
roughly equal, the actual results for the year show an excess of$57,601 in revenue over expenditures.

* Actual revenues were $l6,152less than expected, excluding on behalf state aid of $256,589.
This revenue variance was driven by the actual enrollment.

t' The actual expenditures were lower than expected in various line items, in the total amount of
$139,281, excluding the on-behalf social security and TPAF pension contribution state aid
payments of $256,589 per Exhibit C-1. This indicated that expenditures were made within the
budget, with positive variances in General and School Administration totaling $103,705.

* The general fund also made transfers to the Food Service program during the2017-18 School
Year, in the amount of $8,583.

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2018, the School had $939,078 invested in a building, leasehold
improvements, machinery and equipment. Table 4 shows fiscal 2018 balances compared to 2017.

Tóle4
Chpital Assds QV ofD,peci*icn) dJwre 30

2018 2017

Building krerovenroús

lvhdmery rdþúgrvr
Building

Tmls

$ 166,9n S r35:7t9

3zln ß,671

1q,ry 76567

$ %9,078 SÆ

Overall capital assets decreased 56,879 from fiscal year2017 to fiscal year 2018. The increase was
attributed to the addition and adjustment of depreciable assets of 549,019, offset by depreciation expense
of $55,958.

Operating Leases

The School currently leases two copiers. Future minimum lease payments for each copier can be found in
Note 14 of the Notes to Financial Statements.
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For the Future

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership will continue to enhance its financial position and its
academic position, as it has over the past year. The school is striving to be the most academically
successful public school in Gloucester Township, and will continue to invest in its programming and
facilities as it continues to make significant strides toward that goal.

Contacting the School's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and oversight entities with a general
overview of the School's finances and to show the School's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional information please contact Riscee Langhorne,
Administrator/Board Secretary at The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership at T2l West Church Street,
Blackwood, New Jersey 08012.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CHARTER SCHOOL. WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the School.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall School, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the School.



_20 -

THE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JIINE 30.2018

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

E)CIIBIT A-1

Total
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Capital Assets, Net (Note 5):

Total Assets

DEF'ERRED OUTFLOWS OF' RESOT]RCES :

Deferred Pension Outflow

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Governments

Unearned Revenue

Non-Current Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOT]RCES:

Deferred Pension Inflow

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted:

Escrow Fund
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

338,702

164,I7I
939,078

90,432 $

6,006

429,r34
170,177

939,078

l,44l,g5l 96,438 1,538,389

191,1 18 191,1 18

17,583

80,973

124,610

3,332

32

20,915
80,973

32

124,610

223,166 3,364 226,530

207,903 207,903

939,079

75,000

r87,922 93,074

939,078

75,000

280,996

1,202,000 $ 93,074 $ r,295,074

The accompanying Notes to tr'inancial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

Program Revenues

EXHIBIT A-2

Net @xpense) Revenue and
Chanses in Net Position

Expenses

Charges
for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Business-

Governmental fype
Activities Activities TotalFunctions/Proqrams

Governmental Activities:
Instruction:

Regular

Support Services:

Health Services

School Adminishative Services

Employee Benefits

General and Business Administrative Services

Unallocated Depreciation

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities :

Food Service

Before and After Care

Summer Enrichment

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Govemment

r,095,489 $

108,330

791,162
397,931

926,871

55,958

I 10,136

443,077

(1,0e5,48e) $

(108,330)

(681,026)
45,146

(926,871)
(55,e58)

$ (l,095,489)

(108,330)

(68 r,026)
45,t46

(926,87r)
(55,958)

7 7'7\'741 553,213 (2,822,s28) (2,822,528)

99,507
)1 \44
7,852

7 7)4

37,00s
17,924

83,600

30,620

(8,583)
40,08 r

t0,0'72

(8,583)
40,081

10,072

t34,903 6) )\7 1t4,220 4t,570 41,s70

3,510,644 $ Á) )<? $ 667,433 $ (2,822,s28) $ 41,570 $ (2,780,958)

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, net
Federal and State Aid Not Restricted

lnvestment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total General Revenues, Special Items, Extraordinary Iterns and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position-Beginning

Net Position-Ending

I,180,220 $

t,666,9s3
113

20,923
(8,583)

1,t80,220
r,666,9s3

ll3
20,923

8,583

2,859,626 8,583 2,868,209

37,098

t,164,902

50,1 53

42,921

87,251

r,207,823

1,202,000 $ 93,074 S r,295,0',74

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual fund in a
format that segregates information by fund.



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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THE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FI.INDS
JUNE 30.2018

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

E)ilIIBIT B-1

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equiv¿lents
Interfund Receivable

State Aid Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Interfund Payable
Due to Other Governments

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted
Escrow Fund

Unassigned, Reported in:
General Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

501,533 $ 8,481 $ 510,014

292,903
44,459

164,17T

8,481 $ 301,3 84

44,459

164,I7l

16,243 $

80,973

1,340 $

7,141

t7,583
7,74r

80,973

97,276 8,481 105,697

75,000

329,3I7

75,000

329,3t7

404,317

501,533 $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not fmancial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $1,172,587 and the accumulated depreciation
is $233,509 (Note 5).

Long Term Net Pension Liability
Deferred Pension Outfl ows
Deferred Pension Inflows

Net position of govenrmental activities

8,481

404,317

939,078

(r24,6t0)
191,118

(207,903)

L,202,000

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TTTE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. Ð(PENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

EXHIBIT 8.2

Total
Governmental

Funds

RE\rENUES
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Regular Instruction
Support Services:

Health Services

Child Study Team

Other Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfer to Food Service Fund

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance-July 1

Fund Balance-June 30

1,180,220

113

20,923

r,rgo,220
113

20,923

r,201,256
1,725,723

I 10,136

r,201,256
1,725,723

I 10,136

2,926,979 1 10,136 3,037,r15

1,095,489

108,330

34,438
816,735

756,724

49,079

1 10,136

r,0g5,4gg

108,330

34,438
926,871
756,724

49,079

2,860,795 1 10,136 2,970,93I

66,184 66,184

(8,s83) (8,583)

(8,583) (8,583)

57,601

346,716

57,601

346,716

404,317 $ 404,3I7

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-3

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES.

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FU¡{DS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Pension Contributions are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the contributions are adjusted for actuarial valuation adjustments, including service and

interest costs, administrative costs, investment returns, and experience/assumption. This is the amount
by which net pension liability and deferred inflows/outflows related to pension changed during the period.

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense

Capital outlays

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2)

$ (55,958)

49,079

$ sz,oot

(13,624)

(6,879)

$ 37,098

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30.2018

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Before and
After Care
Program

EXHIBIT 8.4

Food
Service

Summer
Enrichment Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivables

Accounts Receivable - Other

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $

Interfund Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities:

Net Position
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

40,673 83,011 10,072 133,756

35,897
4,712

64

81,781

746

484

10,072 $ 127,750

5,458

548

40,673 $ 83,011 $

37,318
23

10,072 $ r33,756

? 77)

37,378
32

40,673 40,682

83,002 r0,072 93,074

83,002 r0,072 93,074

Total Liabilities and Net Position 40,673 $ 83,011 $ 10,072 $ r33,756

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Fund

Before and

After Care
Program

EXHIBIT B-5

Food

Service

Summer

Enrichment
Total

Enterprise

'7 7"',4

17,924

37,005

Operating revenues:

Charges for Services:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs:

Tuition
Extended DayFees

Total Operating Revenue:

Operating expenses:

Salaries

Food Costs - Reimbursable Pros
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (I-oss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) :

State Sources:

School Lunch Program
School Before and After Care Proeram

Federal Sources:

School Breakfast Program

National School Lunch Program

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (I,oss) before Contributions & Transfers

Transfer from General Fund

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position-Beginning

Total Net Position-Endins

7,324 $

17,924

37,005

1 ?)d 37,005 17,924 62,253

30,588

66,9ss
1,964

22,949

4,595

3,500

4 75)

57,037

66,955

10,91l

99,507 27,544 7 9,5' t34,903

(e2,r83) 9,461 t0,072 (72,6s0)

1,009

30,08s

s2,507

30,620

1,008

30,620

30,085

52,s07

83,600 30,620 114,220

(8,583)

R 5R?

40.081 10,072 41,570

R 5R3

40,081

42,921

10,072 s0,153

42,921

83,002 $ 10,072 $ 93,074

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

EXHIBIT B-6

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Food

Service

Before and
After Care Summer
Program Enrichment

Total
Enterprise

63,459
(57,037)
(s2,s29)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating Subsidies and Transfers from/to Other Funds

Cash Received from State anci Federal Reimbursement

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITALAND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Uscd for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and Dividends

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities

Net lncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances-Beginn ing of Year

Balances-End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcìle Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by
(Used for) Operating Activities
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receìvable, Net
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Increase/(Decrease) in Interfund Accounts Payable

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

10,072

35,897 $ 81,781 $ 10,072 $

9,658
(30,588)
(43,582)

35,877

(22,949)
(4,s95)

t7,924
(3,s00)
(4,352)

(64,s12) 8,3 33 t0,072 (46,1 07)

8,583

83,600 30,620

8,583

114,220

q, r1? 30,620 122,803

27,671
8,226

3 8,953

42,828
76,696
5 1,054

127,7 50

(92,183) $

2,311
3,332

22,005
¿J

9,461 $

(r,1 37)

9

10,072 s (72,650)

1,174

22,005
32

27,671 (r,128)

(64,5 r2) $ 8,333

Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities:
During the year, the district received zero dollars of food commodities from the U. S. Department of Agriculture

)6 547

$ __lo'91 $ ___l*6192

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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EXHIBIT 8.7

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30.2018

Unemployment Agency
Trust Fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,234 $ 5,925

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

5,925

5,925

$ 5,925

NET POSITION

Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes $ 5,234

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 8.8

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust
ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Contributions

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS

Unemployment Claims and Fees

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position-Beginning of the Year

Net Position-End of the Year

r6,989

16,989

18,210

18,2r0

(r,22r)

6,455

5,234

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT]NE 30. 2018

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF THE KINGDOMCHARTERSCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP AND
REPORTING ENTITY

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership is located and incorporated on June 1,2011 in the County of
Camden, State of New Jersey and began its first year of education operations in September of 2011. It was
created through the approval of its New Jersey Charter Schools Application by the State of New Jersey,
Department of Education. As a Charter School, The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership functions
independently as an educational institution through a Board of Trustees (the "Board"). In accordance with the
by laws of the Charter School, the Board is to consist of not less than 5 and not more than l lvoting persons.
There will be 3 non-voting members; one management company headquarters staff member, the Lead Person
as long as this person is a founder of the school, and the Head of School/Principal.

A. Reporting Entity:

The purpose of the Charter School during their initial fiscal school year of 2011-12 was to educate 120
students in Kindergarten through Third Grade. Fourth Grade was added in the 2012-13 school year and Fifth
Grade was added in 2013-14. The enrollment at June 30, 2018 was 205, which is 2 students more than in
2016-T7. A school business administrator/board secretary was appointed by the Board and responsible for the
administrative control of the Charter School.

The primary criterion for including activities within the Charter School's reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codíficøtíon of Governmentøl Accountíng ønd Fínøncíal Reportíng Standørds, is
whether:

There \ryere no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity, under the criteria as described
above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the Charter School is not includable in any other reporting
entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New Accounting Standards:

The Charter School has adopted the following GASB statements:

GASB No. 75 -Accounting and Fínancial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensíons: The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by
state and local govemments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment
benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers
about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting
for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional
transparency. The requirements of this Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. The adoption of GASB 75 will impact the financial statements of the Charter School.

GASB No. 85 - Omnibus 2017: The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment
benefits [OPEB]). The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. The adoption of GASB 85 is not expected to impact the financial statements of the
Charter School.

improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only
existing resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable
trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial
reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt
that is defeased in substance. The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2017. The adoption of GASB 86 is not expected to impact the financial
statements of the Charter School.

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the
financial statements include:

financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable
liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A goveñìment that has legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should
recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. The requirements of Statement will be
effective for reporting periods begiruring after June 15,2018. Management is evaluating the potential
impact of the adoption of GASB 83 on the Charter School's financial statements.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

New Accountins Standards (Cont'dl:

the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identiffing fiduciary activities of
all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists. Separate criteria afe included to identify fiduciary component units and
postemployment benefit affangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of Statement will
be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the
potential impact of the adoption of GASB 84 on the Charter School's financial statements.

financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by govemments.
This Statement increases the usefulness of govemments' financial statements by requiring recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow ofresources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about govemments' leasing activities. The requirements of Statement will
be effective for reporting periods beginning after periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 87 on the Charter School's
financial statements.

Placements: The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in
notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct
placements. It also clarifies which liabilities govemments should include when disclosing information
related to debt. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements
as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in
lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual
obligation is established. This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt
be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as
collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default
with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences,
and significant subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to financial statements related to debt, this
Statement also requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct borrowings and
direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential impact of
the adoption of GASB 88 on the Charter School's financial statements.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

New Accounting Standards (Cont'dl:

objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about
capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplifu accounting for
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement establishes accounting
requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost
includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of
paragraphs 512 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidqnce
Contaíned in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by
this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for fìnancial statements
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before
the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a
business-type activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements
prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end
of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with
governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is evaluating the potential impact
of the adoption of GASB 89 on the Charter School's financial statements.

No. 6I: The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of
reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity
interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be
reported as an investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an
investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose goveTnment engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or
permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair
value. For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organizatíon, a
government should report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or
fund that holds the equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the
equity method. This Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally
separate organization results in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate
organization and, therefore, the government should report that organization as a component unit. This
Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest
account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at
acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is
evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 90 on the Charter School's financial
statements.
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A.Basis of PresentatÍon:

The Charter School basic financial statements consist of Charter School-wide statements, including a
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more
detailed level of financial information.

Charter School-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statements of activities display
information about the financial activities of the overall Charter School, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Charter School. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other nonexchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activities
of the Charter School at the fiscal year end while the statement of activities presents a comparison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each different business-type activity ofthe Charter School and for
each function of the Charter School's governmental activities.

clearly identifiable to a particular function. lndirect expenses-expenses of the Charter School related to
the administration and support of the Charter School's programs, such as personnel and accounting-are
not allocated to programs.

programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all taxes and state formula aid, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the Charter School segregates transactions related to
certain Charter School functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial statements provide information about the Charter School's
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary,
andfiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey Charter Schools to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in
GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for
public interest and to promote consistency among Charter School financial reporting.

B. Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the Charter School are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to
ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund accounting
require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds in accordance with
activities or objectives specified for the resources. Each funds operations are accounted for with a separate set
of selÊbalancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or
expenses, as appropriate. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report:
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School and is used to account for
all expendable financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. tncluded
are certun expenditures for instructional and non-instructional equipment which are classified in the
Capital Outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, The Kingdom Charter School of
Leadership includes budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as

they pertain to governmentalities state that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance
capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived
exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay pu{poses are normally derived from the "local levy" local share -
charter school aid, "local levy" state share - charter school aid, categorical aid, revenues from other
sources and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those in excess of $2,000, which result in the
acquisition of or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds,
construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by Board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Charter School accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
from the state and federal government (other than expendable trusts, major capital projects or enterprise
funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes in the
special revenue fund.

Capital Proiects Fund - The Charter School currently has no capital projects, and, therefore, the
accounting system of the Charter School does not include a capitalprojects fund.

Debt Service Fund - The Charter School currently has no debt service obligations, and, therefore, the
accounting system of the Charter School does not include a debt service fund.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is on determination of net income, financial position and cash
flows. The applicable generally accepted accounting principles are similar to businesses in the private
sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the Charter School:

Enterprise (Food Service) Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the School is
thatthe costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the
School has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andlor net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DI

B. Fund Accounting (Cont'd):

The School's Enterprise Fund is comprised of a Food Service Fund managed by an outside food service
management company. For expediency, the financial records are maintained within the food service
fund of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership. Federal and state subsidy reimbursements as well
as a food service operating costs were allocated on a pro-rata basis. There were no Inventory or
commodity amounts considered as owned by The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurent, associated with their
activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is separated
into contributed capital and unreserved retained eamings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Before and After Care Program Fund- The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership maintains a Before
and After Care program that is intended to be effectively provided on a cost-reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE

Fiduciary Funds include Expendable Trust, Nonexpendable Trust and Agency Funds. The
measurement focus of the Expendable Trust Funds is the same as for governmental funds. The
measurement focus of the Nonexpendable Trust Funds is similar to Proprietary Funds. Agency Funds
are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of
operations. The following is a description of the Fiduciary Funds of the Charter School:

Trust and Agencv Funds: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
Charter School in a Trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
goverTìments or others.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund: A nonexpendable trust fund is used to account for assets held under the
terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the Charter School is under obligation to maintain the trust
principal. The accounting system of the Charter School does not include a nonexpendable trust fund.

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner
as the govemmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting.
Expendable Trust Funds account for assets where both the principal and interest may be spent. The
Expendable Trust Funds will consist of an Unemployment Compensation Insurance Fund in the future.

Asency Funds (Payroll. Health Benefits and Student Activities Fund): Agency funds are used to
account for the assets that the Charter School holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are
custodial in nafure and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The accounting system of
the Charter School includes a payroll fund and a student activities fund.
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C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements.

Charter School-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The Charter School-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Govemmental funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting; the enterprise fund and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of uneamed revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. Ad Valorem
(Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as under the New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to
remit to its school Charter School the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the
end of the school year. The Charter School records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the
start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available.

The Charter School is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid
amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable". Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Govemmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and"avallable" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the Charter School follows the pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. The Charter School's proprietary funds have elected not to apply the
standards issued by FASB after November 30, 1989.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of proprietary
fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recognized in the accounting
period in which they are eamed and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

D. BudgetsÆudgetary Control:

Charter School budgets are prepared annually and are submitted to the Department of Education for review.
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are mandated by the Department of
Education and are detailed in the Charter School Budget Summary form that is part of the NJ Charter School
Application and are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail referenced in NJAC 6:20-2A (m) 1.

Transfers of appropriations may be made by Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year.
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D. Budgets/Budgetary Control: (Cont'd)

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated revenue
recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary pu{poses only and the special revenue fund as noted
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenrles, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are to be maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.

Schedule C-3 in the CAFR presents a reconciliation of the special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of
accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
- Budget and Actual - General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as

presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All
Governmental Fund Types.

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
goverTìmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal
year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods and services. The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C-1, includes all amendments to the
adopted budget, if any. Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the Charter School has
received advances (ifany) are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year end.

E. Encumbrance Accounting:

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the
beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the
outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end. The Charter School had no fund balance
reserved for encumbrances at June 30. 2018.

F. Tuition:

The Charter School Program Act of 1995 specifically prohibits a charter school from charging tuition to
students who reside in the Charter School of residence of the charter school or are non-resident students.

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity:

Transactions -Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts lhat are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered tolfrom a particular fund in the Charter School and that are due within one year.
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G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity: (Contrd)

Inventories - Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
Enterprise Fund are recorded as expenditures during the year of purchase. On Charter School-wide financial
statements and in the enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method and is expended when used. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund
represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018.

Capital Assets - General fixed assets acquired or constructed during the year are recorded at actual cost.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. General fixed assets
are reflected as expenditures in the applicable goverTìmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the
Statement of Net Position. Expenditures that enhance the asset or significantly extend the useful life of the
asset are considered improvements and are added to the fixed asset's currently capitalized cost. The cost of
normal repairs and maintenance are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the Charter School-wide financial statements using the straight-line method
over the followine estimated useful lives:

As set C las s

Estimated
Useful Liver

School Building
Building Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment

30-s0
20
I

5- 10

H. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and
sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that arc not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Charter School and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services,
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Charter School and its employees,
are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

In govemmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that will
pay for the compensated absences. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is reported in the
Statement of Net Position. There is presently no balance in compensated absences liability at June 30, 2018. In
proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and liability of the fund
that will pay for them.

I.Unearned Revenue:

Uneamed revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash, which has been received but not yet earned (see
Note 2(B) regardingthe special revenue fund).
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J. Fund Equity:

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from other
funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated
for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources.

K. Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the enterprise
fund. For the Charter School, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary
costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

L. CharterSchool Funding:

The Charter School is largely funded on its enrollment through the local levy and categorical aid, which
follows a pafücular student. Funding flows from the State to the district board of education and then to the
Charter school. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 184:36A-12 "the school district of residence shall pay directly to
the Charter School for each student enrolled in the charter school who resides in the district a presumptive
amount equal to 90o/o of the local tax levy budget per pupil for the specific grade level in the district. At the
discretion of the commissioner and at the time the charter is granted, the commissioner may require the school
district of residence to pay directly to the charter school for each student enrolled in the charter school an
amount equal to less than 90o/o, or an amount, which shall not exceed T00% of the local levy budget per pupil
for the specific grade in the district of residence. The per pupil amount paid to the charter school shall not
exceed the local levy budget per pupil for the specific grade level in the district in which the charter school is
located. The district of residence shall also pay directly to the charter school any categorical aid attributable to
the student, provided the student is receiving appropnate categorical services, and any federal funds
attributable to the student"

During the school year, a charter school shall conduct an enrollment count on June 1, October 15, February 15,
and the last day of the school year. A charter school shall submit each count through a summary school
register for the purposes of determining average daily enrolment. Based on these counts, a charte.x school's
revenue is adjusted accordingly.

M. Net Position:

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in capital assets, net
of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance
of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation
adopted by the Charter School or through extemal restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The Charter School's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.
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N. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value,
is recorded on the accrral basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the Charter School, avallable means within sixty days
of the fiscal year end. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Charter School receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is eamed.

Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specifu the year
when the resources are required to be used or for the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching
requirements, in which the Charter School must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the Charter School on a reimbursement basis.
On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be
recognized. Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both measurable
and avallable at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an advance, interest, and tuition.

O. Comparative DatalReclassifications:

After the initial year of operations, comparative total data for the prior year will be presented in selected
sections of the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the
Charter School's financial position and operations. Also, certain immaterial amounts presented in the prior
year data will be reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

P. Allocation of IndÍrect Expenses:

The Charter School reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are reported
separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social security,
workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program.

Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect
expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific
function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. Interest
on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Q. Extraordinary and Special ltems:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in occuffence. Special
items are transactions or events that are within the control of management and are either unusual in nature or
infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

R. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses:

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise
fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

On Charter School-wide financial statements and in the enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund
represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefìt periods beyond June 30, 2018.

S. Short -Term Interfund Receivables/Payables:

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that arc owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered tolfrom apafücular fund in the Charter School and that are due within one year.

T. Management Estimates:

In order for the preparation of basic financial statements to be in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

U. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations:

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the School-wide financial
statements. Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for pa¡rment early in the following year. For other long-term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported
as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the
Statement of Net Position.

V. Fund Balance Reserves:

The CharterSchool reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future
use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation
or expendifure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion which is available for appropriation in future
periods. A fund balance reserve has been established for encumbrances.

W. Lease Acquisition Costs:

As part of any long-term lease agreement, providing for the use of school buildings, payments constituting
professional lease acquisition and other related professional fees will expensed when incurred in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 65. There were no such leases for the year ended June 30. 2018.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest. U.S.
Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with a maturity of one year or less when purchased
are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey Schools are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may
invest in. New Jersey statute l8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by
New Jersey Schools. Investments are stated at cost, or amortized cost, which approximates market.

The amortized cost method involves valuing a security at its cost on the date of purchase and thereafter
assuming a constant amortization to maturity for any discount or premium. The Board classifies certificates of
deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the
date of purchase, as investments.

Deposits:

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New
Jersey, which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan
Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in public
depositories. School districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund. New Jersey statues require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public
funds that exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5o/o of the average daily balance of collected public
funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75%o of the capital funds
of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 100% of the
amount exceeding 7 5o/o.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of the
Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

fnvestments:

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage
Agency or of any United States Bank for Cooperatives, which have a maturity date no greater than
twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds of other oblieations of the school.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

As of June 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalents in the fund financial statements of the Charter School consisted
of the following:

Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Checking Accounts $ 440,293

Total s 440,293

Custodial Credit Risk*Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Charter School's
deposits may not be recovered. Although the Charter School does not have a formal policy regarding
custodial credit risk, NJSA 17:9-41 t seq. requires that the govenìmental units shall deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Govemmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). GUDPA is a supplemental insurance program set forth by the New Jersey Legislature to protect the
deposits of local goverrìment agencies. The program is administered by the Commissioner of the NJ
Department of Banking and Insurance. Under the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits in each
insured depository is protected by FDIC. Funds owned by the Charter School in excess of FDIC insured
amounts are protected by GUDPA. As of June 30, 2018, the Charter School's bank balance of $503,045 was
exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

lnsured S

Uninsured and collateralized with
securities held by pledging financial institutions

250,000

253,045

$ 503,045

New Jersev Cash Management Fund - During the fiscal year, the Charter School participated in the New
Jersey Cash Management Fund. The Fund is govemed by regulations of the State lnvestment Council, who
prescribe standards designed to insure the quality of investments in order to minimize risk to the Funds
participants. Deposits with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund are not subject o custodial credit risk as

defined above. At June 30, 2018, the Charter School had no funds on deposit with the New Jersey Cash
Management Fund.

NOTE 4. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

In accordance with Statement No. 16 of the (GASB) entitled "Accounting for Compensated Absences",Part
time employees are not entitled to compensated absences. Benefits paid in any future period will be calculated
in accordance with formulas outlined in the Charter School agreements with any collective bargaining units
and included in the budget of the current year of payment. There currently is no formal policy concerning
payment of accumulated absences. There was no liability for compensated absences at June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

July 1, Adustments/ June 30,

2017 Additions Retirements 2018

Governmental activities :

Capital Assets that are Not Being Depreciated:

Land

Building Improvement

Machinery and Equipment

Building

Total at Historical Cost

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Building Improvement

Machinery and Equipment

Building

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated,

Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net

NOTE 6. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

As of June 30,2018, there was no debt.

$ 945,957 $ (6,879) $

202,340

128,168

793,000

49,079 251,419

128,169

793,000

1,123,509 49,079 1,I72,587

(66,62r)

(84,497)

(26,433)

(r7,976)
(tl,549)
(26,433)

(84,597)

(96,046)

(52,866)

(177,551) (55,958) (233,509)

945,957 (6,879) 939,078

$ 939,078

To A-1
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans- All required employees of the Charter School are covered by either the Public
Employees'Retirement System (PERS) or the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) which have been
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits
(Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, alt obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available
financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public
Employees Retirement System and the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund. For additional information about
PERS or TPAF, please refer to Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be
found at http://www .nj.gov I teasury/pensions/financial-reports. shtml.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS and TPAF:

Definition
1 Members who are en¡olled prior to July I,2007 .

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 andprior to November 2,2008.
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010.
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after l:|r'day 22,2010 and prior to June 28, 2011.
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 201 1.

Public Employees' Retirement System

The PERS is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that was established in1955. The
PERS provides retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members. The vesting and
benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A . 43:15A. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for
medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers
1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement
benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers I and
2membersbeforereaching age60,tiers3 and4with25 yearsormoreof servicecreditbefore age62,andtier
5 with 30 years or more of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each
month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in
accordance with their respective tier. Tier I members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60
if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years
of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:l5A and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of
New Jersey legislation. PERS provides for employee contributions of 7.34o/o of employees' annual
compensation through June 30, 2018. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in
PERS. The current PERS rate is 13.37% of covered payroll. The Charter School's contributions to PERS for
the years ended June 30, 2018, and 2017, were $5,299 and $4,807 respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-oÊliving
adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums.
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLAI\IS (CONT'D)
,

Public Employees' Retirement System (Cont'd)

The total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $1,710,804. Payroll covered by PERS was $280,060 for i

fiscal year 2018. Contributions to the system for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: i

PERS

Employees g 20,556

Charter School 5,299

Total $ _ä,s!L

The Charter School is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any aççrued liability. These
contributions were equal to the required contributions for 2018, as follows:

Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem
Fiscal Normal Accrued Total Funded by Paid by

Charter
Year Contribution Liabilify Liability State School

_2013_ $_____Éq¡_ $ ___4q1_ s __j2e2_$___!A s s2ee

Components of Net Pension Liability - At June 30, 2018, the Charter School's proportionate share of the
PERS net pension liability was fi124,610. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 20T7. The
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll
forward the total pension liability from an actuanal valuation as of July 1,20T6, to the measurement date of
June 30, 2017 . The Charter School's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Charter School's
actual contributions to the plan relative to the total of all participating employers' contributions for the year
ended June 30,2017. The Charter School's proportion measured as of June 30,2017 was 0.000535% which
was an increase of 0.00001% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2016.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - The Charter School's 2018 PERS pension
expense, with respect to GASB 68, was 529,601. The Charter School's 2018 deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources were from the followins sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience g 2,934 $
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion

25,105 25,013

849
156,931 182,890

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 5,299

Total $ 191,118 $ 207,903



_48_

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTINE 30. 2018

NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Contrd)
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year PERS
2018 s 3.927

7,5r7
(24,974)
(8,710)

r56

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through2026
Thereafter

Inflation

June30,2017

July 1,2016
7.00%

1.65% - 4.15%
2.65% - s.ts%

2.25%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality Table for male
and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and
females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back2 years for males andT years for females. In
addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plan actuary's modifiedMP-z}1{ projection scale. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back I
year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and aone-year static
projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and
beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale.

2019
2020
2021
2022

Thereafter

Total $ (22,084)

AdditÍonal Information-Collective Balances at June 30. 2018 and2OIT are as follows:

Year 6130/2018 613012017
Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 191,118 S 26I,337
Collective deferred inflows of resources $ 207,903 $ z34,rl9
Collective Net Pension Liability $ t 24,610 $ t 54,g9g

charter School's Proportion 0.000535% 0.000523%

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016 which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

PERS
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Contrd)

Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortalitv Table
(set back 3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 20Il to June 30, 2014.It is likely that future experience will not exactly
conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the
emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the
impact on future financial statements.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of
return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors
of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30,2017 are summaÅzed in the following table:

Asset Class

PERS

Target Long-Term Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitieation
Cash equivalents

US Treasuries

Investment grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversified credit
Client oriented hedge funds

Debt related private equity
Debt related real estate

Private real asset

Equity related real estate

U.S. equity
Non-U.S. developed markets equity
Emerging markets equity
Buyouts/ventur e c apital

Total

s.00%
s.s0%

3.00%
r0.00%
2.s0%

5.00%
r.00%
2.00%

1.00%
2.50%
6.25%

30.00%

tt.s0%
6.s0%

8.2s%

5.51%
1.00%

1.87%

3.78%
6.82%
7.10%
6.60%

r0.63%
6.6t%

11.83%

9.23%

8.19%

9.00%
11.64%

13.08%

100.00%
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Cont'd)

Discount Rate - The discount rate as of June 30, 2Ol7 used to measure the total pension liability was
s.OÙyo for PERS. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.0oyo and a municipal bond rate of 3.58yo as of June 30,
2017 based on the Bond Buyer Go 2O-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
40%o of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed l\0o/o of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2040 for PERS. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30,201.7, calculated using
the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.00%)
than the current rate:

Charter School's proportionate
the net pension liability

t%
Decrease
(4.00%)

Current
Discount
(s.00%)

124,610 $

r%
Increase
(6.00%)

99,635r54 s87 $

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The TPAF was established as of January T,1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 184:66 to provide
retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension
and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a special
funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on
behalf of the Charter School and the system's other related non-contributing employers. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of
Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional
and certified.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of
service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own
contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2o/o of related interest earned on the
contributions. ln the case of death before retirement, members'beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited
to the members' accounts.
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Cont'd)

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 184:66 and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78,P.L.201I, the active member
contribution rate increased from 5.5o/o of annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional I%o phased-in over 7
years beginning in July 2012. The member contribution rate was 7 .34o/o in State fiscal year 2018. The phase-in
of the additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of each subsequent State fiscal year.
The State's pension contribution is based on an acttanally determined amount which includes the employer
portion of the normal cost and an amofüzation of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory
group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2017, the State's pension contribution
was less that the actuarial determined amount. Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by
the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the Charter School and all other related non-contributing employers. No
normal or accrued liability contribution by the Charter School has been required over several preceding fiscal
years. These on-behalf contributions by the State of New Jersey are considered a special funding situation,
under the definition of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.

The Charter School was not required to make any contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018 because of the I00% special funding situation with the State of New Jersey.

Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the charter schooll

Year
Fundins
6t30tT8 $
6/30/t7
6/30/16

Cost (APCI Contributed
99.912 100

Net
Pension

Oblieation
%$N/A

N/A
N/A

Annual
Pension

Percentage
of APC

100

100

97,577
97,577

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the State of New Jersey contributed 999,912 to the TPAF for
pension contributions, $64,531 for post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School, and $756 for long-term
disability. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 184:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Charter
School $91,390 during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer's share of social security contributions
for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

Components of Net Pension Liabififf - At June 30, 2018, the Charter School was not required to report a
liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability because of a l00Yo reduction for State of New
Jersey pension support provided to the Charter School.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this pu{pose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at afair value.

Pension Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Charter School recognized pension expense of
9287 ,156 and revenue of 8287,156 for support provided by the State.
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Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Contrd)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuanal assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

TPAF

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through2026
Thereafter

Inflation

Asset Class

Iune30,2017

July 1,2016
7.00%

Varies based
on experience

2.25%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30,2017 are summarizedinthe following table:

TPAF
Target Long-Term Expected

Allocation Real Rate of Return

Absolute retum/risk mitisation
Cash equivalents

US Treasuries

Investment grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversifi ed credit
Client oriented hedge funds

Debt related private equity
Debt related real estate

Private real asset

Equity related real estate

U.S. equity
Non-U.S. developed markets equity
Emerging markets equity
Buyouts/venture capital

Total

s.00%
s.50%

3.00%
10.00%

250%
5.00%
1.00%
2.00%
r.00%
2.s0%

6.2s%

30.00%
tt50%
6.s0%

8.25%

s.5t%
1.00%

1.87%

3.78%
6.82%
7.10%

6.60%
r0.63%
6.61%

11.83%
9.23%

8.19%

9.00%
t1.64%
13.08%

100.00%



-53-

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF'LEADERSHIP
NOTES TO F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT]NE 30. 2018
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Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Cont'd)

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25o/oas of June 30,20T7.
This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an
average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The
State contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2036. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through 2036 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - As indicated above,
TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays 100% of the Charter School's annual required
contribution.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits financial report. Information
on where to obtain the report is indicated at the beginning of this note.

NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

General Information about the OPEB Plan

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other
postemployment (health) benefits for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan. The State
Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan
that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for the
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees
Plan provides medical, prescription drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded
by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. According to N.J.S.A 52:14- 17.32f, the
State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a board of education or county college
with25 years or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following
plans: the Teachers' Pension and A¡nuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS),
the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS), or the Altemate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to
Chapter 78, P .L, 20II, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years
of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care
coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of
the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level of coverase.
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NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEBI (CONT'D)

General Information about the OPEB Plan

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit obligations that
are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits are the responsibility of the
individual local education employers.

At June 30,2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

TPAF participant retirees
As of June 30, 2017, there were 112,966 retirees receiving post retirement medical benefits and the
State contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf.

PERS participant retirees
The state paid $238.9 million toward Chapter l26benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal
Year 2017.

Basis of Presentation

The Schedule presents the State of New Jersey's obligation under NJSA 52:14-17 .32f. The Schedule does not
purport to be a complete presentation of the financial position or changes in financial position of the State
Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan or the State of New Jersey. The accompanying
Schedule was prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Such preparation
requires management of the State of New Jersey to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to
the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature of these estimates, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Total OPEB Liability

The State of New Jersey's total OPEB liability, as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017, was
$53,639,841,858. Of this amount, the total OPEB liability attributable to the Charter School was $972,778.
The State of New Jersey's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability is 100%, including the proportion
attributable to the Charter School of 0.00170o/o.The total OPEB liability for the Charter School measured as of
June 30, 2017 iszeto as aresult of the Special Funding Situation with the State of New Jersey. The Charter
School's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability measured as of June 30, 2017 is 0.00%. Accordingly,
the Charter School did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net
Position.

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30,2017 was determined by anactuanal valuation as of June
30,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30,
2016 was determined by an acfianal valuation as of June 30, 2016. The actuarial assumptions vary for each
plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuanal valuation used the
following actuanal assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:
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NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONT'D)

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liabififf (Cont'd)

TPAF/ABP PERS
Inflation Rate

Salary Increases:

Ttuough2026
Thereafter

2.50%
Based on

Years of Service

1.55% - 4.55%
2.00% - 5.4s%

2.s0%
Based on

Age
2.ts% - 4.ts%
3.r5% - 5.15%

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year
using the MP-2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount- Weighted
Healthy Annuitant Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the
central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 Headcount- 'Weighted
Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year
using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies for the periods July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2015, July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2013, and July l,20ll
- June 30,2014 for TPAF and PERS, respectively.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9Yo and
decreases to a 5.0o/o long-term trend rate after nine years. For selÊinsured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the
trend rate is 4.5%o. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially
5.9o/o and decreases to a 5.0o/o long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial
trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a 5.0o/o long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5%;o and will continue in all
future years.

Discount rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2017 was 3.58%. This represents the municipal bond retum rate as chosen by
the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.
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NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEBI (CONT'D)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability
840,681

232,045
30,285

(169,869)
778

(21,t42)
72,097

912,778

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate:

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017, respectively, calculated
using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability would be if it
was calculated using a discount ratethat is l-percentage point lower or l-percentage point higher than the
current rate:

June 30.2017
AL I.00% Decrease At Discount Rate At 1.00% Increase

2.58% 358% 4.58%

$ 63,674,362,200 53,639,941,959 45,690,364,953

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to changes in the healthcare trend rate:

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017, calculated using the
healthcare trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability would be if it
was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower or l-percentage point higher than
the current rate:

June 30.2017
Healthcare Cost

I.00% Decrease Trend Rate I.00% Increase

g 44,713,584,560 53,639,941,959 66,290,599,457

Balance as of June 30r2016 Measurement Date $

Changes for the year:

Service cost
Interest cost
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Member contributions
Gross benefit payments

Net changes
Balance as of June 30.2017 Measurement Date S
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NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEBI (CONT'DI

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Charter School recognized OPEB expense of $261,594. The Charter
School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Oufflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

r07,95r

113,335

Total $ 113,335 $ 107,951

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognízed in OPEB expense as follows.

Measurement Period Ending June 30, OPEB
$ 11,316

1 1,3 16

lr,316
lr,3l6
ll,316
40,057

Total $ 96,637

20r8
20t9
2020
2021
2022

Thereafter

Special Funding Situation

The participating local education employer allocations included in the supplemental Schedule of special
funding amounts by employer are provided as each local education employer is required to record in their
financial statements, as an expense and corresponding revenue, their respective amount of total OPEB exponse
attributable to the State of New Jersey under the special funding situation and to include their respective
amount of total OPEB liability in their notes to their financial statements. The total OPEB liability and service
cost for each employer was determined separately based on actual data for each employer's par.ticipants.

NOTE 9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board currently offers its employees the Equivest deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Intemal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
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NOTE 10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Charter School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; effors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liabilitv Insurance- The Charter School maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found
in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersev Unemplovment Compensation fnsurance- The Charter School has elected to fund its New
Jersey Unemplo¡rment Compensation lnsurance under the Reserve method. Under this plan, the Charter
School is required to contribute a percentage of wages to the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund on a
quarterly basis. The following is a summary of Charter School contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the Charter School's expendable trust
fund for the current and prior year:

Charter Ending
School Employee Amount Balance

Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed June 30.

2017-2018$12,05094,939$N/A95,234
2016-2017 14,253 3,947 11,745 6,455
2015-20t6 N/A 5.276 N/A

NOTE 11. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2018:

Interfrrnd Interfrrnd
Fund Receivable Payable

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Food Service Fund

Total

ï 44+se S

7,r41
37,3r8

$ 44,459 S 44459

NOTE 12. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund-Of the $404,317 General Fund balance at June 30, 2018, $75,000 was restricted as a required
escrow and the remaining 9329j17 was unrestricted. In accordance with NJDOE stipulations, $15,000 was
added to the escrow account each year. until such time as the amount reaches $75.000.
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NOTE 13. LITIGATION

The CharterSchool is currently in arbitration with its previous charter school management company regarding
a breach of contract dispute, of which the Charter School is exposed to a potential liability. The Charter
School legal counsel believe Kingdom's potential exposure to be in the range of $500,000 if an unfavorable
outcome is ruled.

NOTE 14. OPERATING LEASES

Copiers

The District leasestwo copiers under an operating lease agreement. The future minimum lease payments
associated with each lease is as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

20t9
2020
202r

Total

8,677
7,344
5,8r4

$ 21,835

NOTE 15. TAX ABATEMENT

As defined by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement
between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and
the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts are not authorized by New
Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the
school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, andthatpotential must be disclosed
in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those
agreements will not directly affect the school district's local tax revenue because NJSA 54:4-75 and NJSA
54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to
the school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their
minimum tax levy using the required local share provisions at NJSA 184:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting
from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the
complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New Jersey Department of
Education based upon district property value and wealth.

NOTE 16. SUBSEOUENT EVENTS

There were no events between year-end and the date of the audit that require additional disclosure.

End of Notes to Financial Statements



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION _ PART II



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES



-60-

TH[, KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2OI8

EXHIBIT C-I
SHEET I

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable/
(Unfavòrable)

REVENUES:

"Local Tax Levy"- Local Sha¡e - Cha¡ter School Aid

City of Camden
Borough ofCla¡on
Borough ofClementon
Borough of Collingswood
Township ofDeptford
Township ofFranklin
Township ofGloucester
Township ofHarrison
Borough ofLawnside
Borough ofLindenwold
Township of Monroe
Borough ofPaulsboro
Borough ofPine Hill
Borough ofSomerdale
Borough of Stratford
Township of West Deptford
Township of Washington
Township of Winslow
City of Woodbury
Borough ofWoodlynne

Toøl - Local Levy

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget

s 1,313 $ 1,313

2,429 2,429
73,913 73,913
3,958 3,958

32,174 32,174
7,220 7,220

1,237,0ts (710,465) s26,ss0
6,028 6,028
1r,44s t1,44s

141,654 141,654
38,234 38,234
12,s99 12,s99
46,403 46,403
7,693 7,693
7,826 7,826
6,751 6,751

106,997 106,997

14t,882 t41,882
3,169 3,169
1,982 1,982

I,237,015 (s6,79s) t,180,220

Actual
Revenue/

Expenditures

$ 1,313 S

2,429
73,913
3,958

32,174
7,220

526,550
6,028

tt,44s
141,6s4
38,234
12,s99
46403
7,693
7,826
6,751

106,997
141,882

3,169
1,982

1,180,220

State Sources:

Local Tax Levy"- $tate Share - Charter School Aid:
Equalization Aid

Categorícal Aids
Special Education Aid
Security Aid
Adjustment Aid

On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (Non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Post Retirement Medical Insurance (Non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability (Non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (Non-Budgeted)

t,394,f84

77,608

1,394,384

77,608
34,330

1,341,309

73,442
3 t,81 I
'rt <1)

99,912
64,s3t

/)o
91.390

(53,07s)

(4,t66)
(2,ste)
)) <7')

99,912
64,s3t

756
91,390

Total State Aid

Revenue from Other Sources
Interest On Investments
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue from Other Sources

TOTALREVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT EXPENSES:

Regular Progams - Instn¡ction:
Salaries of Teachers - Kindergarten
Salaries ofTeachers - Grades l-5
Other Salaries for Instruction

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction:
Purchased Professional - Tech. Services
Purchased Professional - Educational Sewices
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction
Sala¡ies

Purchased Services

TOTAL INSTRUCTION

1,506,322 1,s06,322 I,72s,723 219,401

150 (1s0)
I lJ

)î o)7
ll3

20.923

150 (1s0) 21,036 21.036

2,743,487 S (s6,94s) $ 2,686,s42 $ 2,926,979 g 240,437

984,268
50,43s

42,266

1,000

9,750
53,Vs8

8,000

105,0s0 $
(202,689)

48,000

(42,266)
19,800
(1,000)
1,560

19,163
540

105,050 $
781,579
98,43s

19,800

I 1,3 10
'tJ o) 1

8,s40

105,050 $
780,973
92,416

16,533

t0,327
72,921

7,587

606
6,0r9

a )Á1

983

9s3

1,149,477 (st,842)

9,520
600

|,097,635 1,085,807 I 1,828

9,520
600

9,520
162 438

10,120 10,120 9,682 438

g 1,149,477 S (41,722) g l,1o7,7ss S 1,09s,489 $ t2,266
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EXHIBIT C-I
SIIEET 2

Variance
F¡nâl to Actual

Favorable/
Expenditures (Unfavorable)

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget

EXPENDITURES: (Continued)
CURRENT EXPENSES: (Continued)

UNDISTRIBUTED E)GENDITURES:

Health Services

Sala¡ies

Purchased Professional - Technical Services

Supplies & Materials

Total Health Services

Child Study Team
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Total Child Study Team

General Administrative Services:

Salaries - Administrative
Salaries of Secretarial/Clerical Assisønts
Legal Services

Audit Fees

Unallocated Benefits
Purchased Professional - Technical Sewices
Other Purchased Professional Services

Other Purchased Services

CommunicationsÆelephone
General Supplies
BOE Membership Dues and Fees

Toøl Support Services/General Administration

Support Services/School Administration:

Salaries

Purchased Professional - Technical Services
Other Purchased Services

Insurance for Property Liability & Fidelity
Supplies & Materials
Energy (lIeat and Electricity)
Miscellaneous Expenditures

Toøl Support Services/School Administration:

Toøl Undistributed Expenditures

TOTAL E)GENDITURES - CURRENT E)PENSE

105,500

500

3,379

109,379

35,778

$$
105,500

500

3,379

109,379

35,778

$

I 05,500
275 225

2,sss 824

108,330 I,049

34,438 1,340

34,438 1,34035,778 35,778

33s,000
214,337

439,680
169,740

27,880
12,100

33,750

(63,61s)

Q14,337)
72,930
1s,000

(t4,7ls)
(169,740)

26,672
(23,880)
(6,r00)
(s,7s0)
18.203

271,385

72,930
15,000

424,965

26,672
4,000
6,000

28,000
18.203

270,507

57,458
1 1,890

423,342

20,783
3,839
2,782

)a t ¿.1

t oo1

878

t5,472
3,1 10

1,623

s,889
161

3,218
4,859

15,210

1,232,487 S (365,332) $ 867,155 $ 816.735 $ s0,420

10s,500
10,500

t37,102
22,000

600
50,000
9,0s0

110,828 $

(10,500)
(60,332)

43,921
(10,000)
144,751

216,328

76,770
22,000
44,521
40,000

1s3,80 I

214,t13

59,836
t6,290
42,903
)7 l<Á

r39,837

)tt<

16,934
5,710
1,618

12,844
13,964

334,752 218,668 5s3,420 500,135 53,28s

On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (Non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Post Retirement Medical Insurance (Non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability (Non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contrib. (Non-budgeted)

99,912
64,531

/)o
91,390

(9e,et2)
(64,s3 l )

(7s6)
(e1,390)

t,567,2J9 (1,s07) 1.565.732 1,716,227 (1s0,49s)

2,716,716 S (43,229) S 2,673,487 $ 2,8rt,7t6 $ (138,229)
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EXHIBIT C.l
SIIEET 3

EXPENDITURES: (Continued)
CURRENT EXPENSES: (Continued)

Capital Outlay

Undistributed
Instructional Equipment
Non-instructional Equipment
Buildings Other than Lease Purchase Agreements

Total Capital Outlay

TOTAL E)GENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfer to Food Service Fund

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Excess @eficiency) ofRevenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances, July I

Fund Balances, June 30

RECAPITULATION:

Restricted:

Escrow Fund
Unrestricted:

Unassigned Fund Balance

TOTAI

Variance
Final to Actual

Original Budget Final Favorable/
Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures (Unfavorable)

70,000

$s

70,000 49,079 20,921

70,000 70,000 49,079 20,921

2,786,716 (43,229) 2,743,487 2,860,795 (117,308)

(43,229) (r3,716) (s6,e4s) 66,184 ltl tto

(8,583)(8,s83)

(8,s83) (8,s83)

lI4,546(43,229)

346.7 t6

(13,716) (s6,94s)

346,716

57,601

346,716

303,487 $ (13,7r6) s 289,771 $ 404,317 S 1t4,546

75,000

7)O 711

404,317
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIALREVENUE FUND
AS OF JUNE 30.2OI8

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual

REVENUES:

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction

General Supplies

Total Instruction

Support Services
Purchased Prof. & Technical Services

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:
Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Total Outflows

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

$$$$$
93,154 16,982 I 10,136 I10,136

93,154 16,9g2 110,136 110,136

93,t54 16,982 I10,136 I10,136

93,154 16,982 I10,136 110,136

93,154 16,982 I10,136 110,136

93,154 16,9g2 I10,136 110,136

ExpendituresandotherFinancingSources(Uses)$-$-$-$-$
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THE KINGDOM CHÄRTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET-TO-GAAP RECONCILIATION
NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

Note A - Explanation ofDifferences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GA-AP Revenues and Expenditures

General

Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund
Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"

from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related

revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,

not recognized for GAAP statements

Total revenues as reported on the statement ofrevenues, expenditures

and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds.

lc-rl $ 2,926,979 lC-21 $ 110,136

lB-21 s 2,926,979 ÍB-21 $ 1r0,136

Uses/outllows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) 'total outflows" from the fC-l| S 2,860,795 IC-21 $ 110,136

budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received

for Jin a n c ia I reporlrrlg purposes.

Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows of
budgetary resources but are not expenditures
for financial reporting purposes.

Net transfers (outflows) to general fund

Total expenditures as reported on the statement ofrevenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds IB-21 S 2,860,795 tB-21 $ 110,136
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District's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability(Asset)

SCHEDULE L.l

0.000535% 0.000523% 0.001960%
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information Part III

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICTIS PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employee's Retirement System

2017 2016 2015

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) g 124,610 $ 154,989 $ 439,961

District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 280,060 $ 191,431 $ 37,080

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 44.49% 80.96% 1186.52%

Plan FiduciaryNet Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 48.10% 40.14% 47.93%

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.
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SCHEDULEL.2

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information Part III

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS)

2017 2016 2015

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the

s 5,299 $ 4,907 $ 16,850

Contractually Required Contribution (5,299) (4,807) (16,850)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $$

District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 280,060 $ 191,431 $ 37,080

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll 1.89% 2.51% 45.44%
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TIIE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information Part III

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Teachers Pension Plan

2017 2016 201s

SCHEDULE L-3

State's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) associated with the District $ 4,145,168 $ 4,376,367 $ 3,865,066

District's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability(Asset)

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) as a percentage

Percentage of its covered-employee

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability

0.006148% 0.005563% 0.006115%

$ 1,172,501 $ 910,141 $ 652,356

353.53% 480.84% 592.48%

2s.4r% 22.33% 28.71%

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.
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SCHEDULE L-4

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information Part III

SCHEDULE OF TIIE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

Teachers Pension Plan

The School District was not required to make any contributions towards TPAF.

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to show information for a 10 year

period. However, information is only currently available for three years.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.



NOTES TO REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART III
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART III
Pension Schedules

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2018

Teøchers' Pensìon ønd Annuítv Fund (TPAFt

Chønges of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit, become vested for 2o/o of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case
of death before retirement. members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members' accounts.

Change of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality
Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based
on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active members are projected using
Scale AA from the base year 2000 until the valuation date plus 15 years to account for future
mortality improvement. Post-retirement mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are
projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003 for females until the
valuation date plus 7 years to account for future mortality improvement.

Publíc Emplovees' Retírement Svstem (PERSI

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:154. PERS
provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
ofPERS.

Change of assumptíons. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and
Female Mortality Tables (setback I year for females) with adjustments for mortality
improvements from the base year of 2012 Based on Projection Scale AA.
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EXHIBIT M-l
THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSIilP

Required Supplementary Information - Part III
Schedule of Chanees in the Total OPEB Liabilitv and Related Ratios

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Emplo)¡ees Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2017

Total OPEB Liabilitv

Service cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions or other inputs

Member contributions

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liabilify - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending

Covered-employee payroll

Total OPEB liabitity as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of benefit terms: None

232,045

30,285

(169,869)

778

(2r,r42)

72,097

840,681

$

$

912,778

1,452,561

62.84%

Changes of assumptions : The decrease in the liability from June 30, 2016 to June 3 0,

2017 ís due to the increase in the assumed discount rate from 2.85% as of June 30. 2016 to
3.58% as of June 30,2017.

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10

years. However, until a fuIl 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include
information for those years for which information is available.



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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EXHIBIT E-l

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SPECIAL REVENTIE F[]ND

OMBINING SCHEDT]LE OF'PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITT]RES - BUDGETARY BAS.

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

NCLB

Title I IDEA Totals
Part A Basic 2018 2017

REVENUES:
Federal Sources $ 71,563 $ 38,573 $ 110,136 $ 93,154

Total Revenues $ 71,563 $ 38,573 $ 110,136 $ 93,154
::::

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
SalariesofTeachers $ $ $ $

Supplies and Materials

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Salaries

Purchased Prof. & Technical Services 71.563 38.573 110.136 93.154

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisitions & Const Serv:

Property

Total Facilities Acquisition & Const Serv

Total Expenditures

7r,563 38,573 110,136 93,154

$ 71,563 $ 38,573 $ 110,136 S 93,154



PROPRIETARY FUND

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs of providing goods or
services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund - This fund provides for the operation of food services in the school.

Before and After Care Program - This fund provides for the supervision of students due to
the extended day beyond the regular school hours.

THIS SECTION HAS ALREADY BEEN INCLUDED IN STATEMENTS 8.4. B-5 AND 8.6.
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THE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSIilP
FOOD SERYICES ENTERPRISE FT]ND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF' NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30.2018

(WITH COMPARATTVE TOTALS F'ORJUNE 30.2017)

Before and
After Care
Program

Summer
Enrichment

E)CIIBIT G-l

Totals
Food

Service
Fund 2018 2017

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable:

State

Federal

Other

Total Current Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:

Current Liabilities;

Accounts Payable

Interfund Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Net Position:

Unreserved Retained Earnin gs

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

$ _j1ot, $ _*jo,ot2

35,897 S

53

4,659
64

81,781 $

746

484

10,072 $ 127,750

799
4,659

548

$ 51,054

153

6,996

131

s 40,673 s 133,756 s 58,234

15,313

40,673 40,682 15,313

83,002 r0,072 93,074 42,92r

83,002 r0,072 93,074 42,92r

$ _ 00,6',3 s__83,0tr $ __jo,- s r33J56 $_ 58,130

7 77)

37,318

23

37,318

32
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THE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSIIIP
FOOD SERVICES ENTERPRISE F'I]NI)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES A¡ID
CHANGES IN F'UND NET POSITION

FOR THE F'ISCAL YEARS ENDED JT]NE 30.2018 AND 2017

EXHIBIT G-2

tr'ood

Service
Fund

Before and
After Care
Program

Summer
En¡ichment

Totals
2018

OPERATING REVENUES:

Local Sources:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable
Tuition
Extended Day Fees

Other

Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries

Food Costs - Reimbursable Prog
Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenues :

State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
.Work 

First
Child Care Assistance Program
Transitional Child Care

Federal Sources:

School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Net Income before Operating Transfers

Transfer from General Fund

Net Income

Net Position - July I

Net Position - June 30

1 7)4 37,005 17,924 Á) )5?

7,324 S

17,924 11 A)A

37,005

2017

6,389
3,662

34,56437,005

44,615

30,588

66,955
1 q64

)) aao

4,595

3,500

4 7\)

57,037

66,955
10,911

5? Rqq

75,900
4,048

99,507 27,544 1 9,\) 134,903 r32,847

(92,183) 9,461 10,072 (72,650) (88,232)

1,008

30,085

52,507

30,620

1,008

30,620

30,085

52,507

906
874

18,507

159

27,334
48,230

83,600 30,620 114,220 96,010

(8,583)

8,583

40,081 L0,072 4r,570

8,583

7,'178

26,894

40,081

42,921

10,072 50,1 53

42,921

34,672

8,249

$ 83,002 $ 10,072 $ S 42,92193,074
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EXHIBIT G-3

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
FOOD SERVICES ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH F'LOWS
AS OF JUNE 30.2OI8 AND 2017

Food Before and
Service After Care Summer Totals
Fund Program E¡4g!-e"t 2018 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities
Cash Received from General Fund Reimbursements

$ 9,658 S 35,877 S 11,924 $ 63,459 $ 45,904
(30,s88) (22,949) (3,s00) (s1,037) (s2,899)
(43,s82) (4,s9s) (4,352) (s2,s29) (78,s82)

(64,512) 8,333 10,072 (46,107) (8s,s77)

8,583 t4,6t8
114,220 96,010

122.803 110.628

27,67t 38,953 10,072 76,696 25,051

8,583
Cash Received from State and Federal Reimbursements 83,600 30,620

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Financing Activities

Net Cash Provided by Investment Interest Activities

Net Increase in Cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

92,t83 30,620

8,226 42,828 51,054 26,003

$ 35,897 $ 8r,781 $ 10,072 $ 127,750 $ s1,054

Operatinglncome(Loss) $ (92,183)$ 9,461 $ 10,072 $ (72,650) $ (88,232)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable 2,31I (1,137) 1,174 1,289
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable 3,332 3,332
(Decrease)/Increase in lnterfund Accounts Payable 22,005 22,005 (10,910)
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Revenue 23 9 32

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $__f1s12$_933 $_j0,071$ __(46,t0r) $ ___le?j2



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for a specific purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments anlor other funds.

Student Activify Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at the schools.

Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the school.



-71-
EXHIBIT H-l

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JL]NE 30.2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FORJUNE 30.2017)

Unemployment Student Total
Trust Activities Payroll 2018 2017

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,234 $ 5,925 $ $ 11,159 $ 13,985

Total Assets $ 5,234$ 5,925 $ $ i1,159S 13,985

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:

Liabilities:
Due to Student Groups $ $ 5,925 $ $ 5,925 $ 7,530

Total Liabilities 5,925 5,925 7,530

Net Position:
.Held in Trust for Unemployment

Claims and Other Purposes 5,234 5,234 6,455

Total Liabilities and

NetPosition $ 5,234$ 5,925 $ $ 11,159$ 13,985
:::::
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EXIIIBIT H-2

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

Expendable Trust
Unemployment Total

Funds 2018
Total
2017

ADDITIONS:

Contributions

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Claims
Fees

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of the Year

Net Position - End of the Year

16,989 S 16,989 $ 18,200

16,989 16,989 18,200

18,210 18,210 II,74T
4

18,210

(1,221)

6,455

18,210

(r,221)

6,455

r1,745

6,455

5,234 $ 5,234 $ 6,455
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E)GIIBIT H-3

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FTIND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT]NE 30. 2018

Accounts
Payable Balance

July 1, Cash Cash June 30, June 30,
2017 Receipts m"rr"*""t. 2018 2018

StudentActivityFund $ 7,530$ 19,564$ 2I,169 $ $ 5,925
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
PAYROLL AGENCY FTIND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTJNE 30. 2018

EXHIBIT H-4

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RESERVES :

Net Payroll $

Payroll Deductions & Withholdings

Total Liabilities and Reserves S

Balance Balance
July lr20l7 Additions Deletions June 30, 20L8

$ 2,511,814 $ 2,511,814 $

$ 2,511,814 $ 2,511,814 S

s r,r47,5r4 s r,147,514 $

1,364,300 1,364,300

$ 2,511,814 $ 2,511,814 $



STATISTICAL SECTION
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(UNAUDITED)

E)GIIBIT J-l

20r82013

108,177

(e,148)

98,4t0
15,000

I 17,840

20t4 201s 2016 20t7

Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted - Escrow

Un¡estricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Business-Type Activities

lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position

District-Wide

lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total District-Wide Net Position

Source: CAFR Schedule A-l

99,029 $ 231,250 $ 220,012 s 1,120,217

l 12,811 s 926,368
30,000 45,000

77,20t 148,849

94s,9s7 $ 939,078

60,000 7s,000

158,945 187,922

t,164,902 $ 1,202,000

9,981 2,866 3,661 8,249 42,921 93,074

9,98r S 2,866 $ 3.661 $ 8,249 $ 42,92t $ 93,074

108,177 $

833

98,410
15,000

120,706

tt2,8tt
30,000

80,862

926,368
45,000

t57,098

945,957 8
60,000

20r,866

939,078

75,000
280,996

109,010 $ 234,116 $ 223,673 $ 1,128,466 S 1,207,823 $ 1,29s,074



-76 -

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
CH,A,NGES IN NET POSITION
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(UNAUDITED)

2013 2014 2015

846,326 $

407,728
609,703

22,440

987,261 $

61'7,6'71

s73,399

23,847

908,932 $

1,085,509

503,772

27,60s

910,730

105,2t4
1,l4l,93l

286,597

292,001
)a Rq')

r,08s,305 $

122,090
1,t22,681

4s6,898

291,474

54,73t

EXHIBIT J-2

1,095,489

I 08,330

791,162
926,871
397,931

\\ q\X

Expenses

Governmental activities

Instruction
Support Services

Health Services

School Administrative Services
General Administrative Services
Employee Benefits

Other

Total Govemmental Activities Expenses

Business-Type Activities
Food Service
Extended Day

Summer Enrichment

Total Business-Type Activities Expense

Total District Expenses

Program Revenues

Govemmental Activities
Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

Total Govemmental Activities Progtam Revenues

Business-Type Activities
Charges for Services

Food Service
Befo¡e and After Care
Summer Enrichment
Operating Grants and Contributions

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues

Total District Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue

Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total DistricrWide Net Expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Pos¡t¡on

Govemmental Activities
Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes, net $

Unrestricted Grants and Contributions
lnvestment Eamings

Miscellaneous Income
Prior Period Cancellation
Fixed Asset Adjustment
Transfers

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Transfer

Total Business-Type Activities

Total District-Wide

Change in Net Position
Govemmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total District-Wide

Source: CAFR Schedule A-2

I RRÁ IO7

)7 )OA

2.202.178 t srs RtR 2,'766,365 3,133,179 3,375,741

53,864
26,300

77,632

7,745
1 7,600

I 15,056

1 5,1 02

11,425

t02,992
19,432
t0,423

99,s07
)1 \44
7,852

79,157 80,1 64 102.977 141,583 132,847 1 14 qO?

$ 1,96s,3s4 $

88,663

2,282,342 S 2,628,795 $ 2,907,948 $ 3,266,026 S 3,510,644

84,793 206.258 440.478 544,978 551?l?

84,793 206,258 440,478 544 q?R 55??l?88,663

14,356
23.204

l 3,684
1 8,123

aI )4)

1 ¿.1R7

9,602
9,144

40,290

10,072

19,690
2,550

3'7,363

Á 1Rq

34,564

96,010

1 1)^
37,005

t7,924
114,220

37,s60 73,049 69,675 140,625 t'76,473

126,223 S 157,842 g 279,581 $ 510,153 $ 685,603 729,686

(t,797,s34) g
(41,s97)

(2,1 1 7,385) S (2,3 1 9,560) $
(7,1 ls) (2e,6s4)

(2,32s,887)$ (2,s88,201) g (2,822,s28)
(71,908) 7,778 41,570

t (,,orrJrD s (2,120J,r0) s (2,349,214) $ (2,397,795) $ (2,s80,423)$ (2,780,es8)

765,932
1,003,07s

72

(41,s97)

oo1 50Á

1,1 88,689
43

67,278

t,092,017
I )4¿.'td.q

49
1,956

(30,44e)

1,174,7969 963,6s4 $ 1,180,220

1,346,707 1,684,874 1,666,953

70 8l i13
13,220 9t2 20,923
4,506 10,259

763,289
(68,932) (26,8e4) (8,s83)

1,727,482 2,249,606 2,308,322 3,233,6s6 2,632,886 2,859,626

30,449 68,932 26,894 8,5 83

30,449 68,932 26,894 8,5 83

2,249,606 S 2,338,771 $ 3,302,588 $ 2,6s9,780 $ 2,868,209

41,597

41 5q7

t,769,079 g

(70,0s2) s 132,221 g

(7,1 1 5)

44,685 $

34,672

37,098

50,1 53

(r1,238) $ 907,769 S

'/9s (2,e76)

$ (7o,os2) $ 125.106 $ (10,443) $ 904,793 $ 79,357 $ 87,2sl
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EXHIBIT J-3

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
FUND BALA¡{CES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST FI!'E FISCAL YEARS
(Mod{ìed Accrual Basß of Accounting)

(LtNAUDTTED)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

$ $ 15,000$ 30,000$ 4s,000$ 60,000$ 7s,000

12,720
(9,148) 117,840 104,44s 244,81't 286,716 329,317

$ (9,148) $ 132,840 $ 147,165 $ 289,817 S 346,716 $ 404,317

General Fund
Restricted - Escrow
Assi gned- Year-End-Encumbr¿nces
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Gener¿l Fund

All Other Govemmental Funds

Un¡estricted, Reported in:

Source: CAFR Schedule B-l

$$$s$$
TotalAllOtherGovemmentalFunds $ $ $ $ $ $
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCEOOL OF LEADERSHIP
CHANGES IN FTJND BALANCES-G¡OVERNMENTAL FT,JNDS

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2013 2014 2075 2016 2017

1,155,807 $

8l
912

1,684,8'14

93,154

EXHIBIT J.4

1,180,220

113

20,923
1,725,723

I r0,136

2018

Revenues

TaxI-evy
Investment Eamings

Miscellaneous
State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction

Regular Instruction
Support Services

Health Services

Child Study Team

School Administrative Sewices

General Administrative Services

Capífal Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Finâncing Sources (Uses)

Transfers

Prior Period Orders and Other Adjustments

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Setrice as a Percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures

Source: CAFR Schedule B-2

76s,932 $ 993,s96 $

72 43

67,2',78

r,003,075 1,188,689

88,663 84,793

1,092,017

49

1,956
1,385,454

98,614

1,174,796

70

5,656
1,498,478

q1 r51

1,857,742 2,334,399 2,578,090 2,776,251 ? q1¿ RtR 3,037,i l5

846,326

407,728
609,703

16,090

987,261 908,932

617,671 1,085,509

573,399 496,869

14,080 42,006

1,085,305 1,09s,489910,730

1ã<)14

33 1,1 38

1,141,931

80,1 60

122,090

4s6,898

1,122,681

74,320

108,330

34,438
926,871
756,724

49,079

1,879,847 2,192,411 2,533,316 2,569,173 2,861,294 2,970,931

r41.988(22,10s)

(41,se7)

44,774

(30,449)

207,078

(68,932)
4,506

(26,894)

10,2s9

66,184

(8,583)

(4t,s97) (30,449) (64,426) (l 6,63s) (8,s83)

(63,702)$ 141,988 $ t4,325 $ 142,652 56,899 $ s7,601

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0o/o 0.0%0.0%



FÍscal Year
Ended

June 30,
Interest on
lnvestments Fundraisers

EXHIBIT J-5

Total

Prior Year
Expenditure
Adjustments

2,230 $

3,600

60,466
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THE KINGDOM CIIARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOI]RCE

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
ft]NAUDITED)

Misc.

2018 $ lr3
20t7 8r
2016 70
2015 49

2014 43

20t3 72

374 $ 18,319

912
2,056
1,956

6,769

21,036
993

5,726
2,005

67,278

72

Source: District Records
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS**

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Personal
Income

(thousands

of dollars) b

Per Capita
Personal

Income "

EXHIBIT J-14

Unemployment

Rate 
dYear Population "

2018

2017

20r6
20ts
2014
2013

2012

64,223 $

64,r59
64,002
63,897

63,940

64,TT8

64,41r

3,T78,457,662 $

3,012,877,669
3,006,846,482

3,076,327,065
2,953,708,300
2,869,536,972

2,848,572,064

49,49r
49,447

49,392
48,145
46,795

44,754

44,224

4.2%
4.6%
s.6%
s.7%

7.1%
8.t%

9.2%

** The above demographics reflect the entire Township of Gloucester.

The students of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership represent approximately
2.9Yo of the total number of students in Gloucester Township.

* Estimate

Source:
u Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and'Workforce Development
b Personal income

' Per Capita (County vs Municipal information)
d Unemploym ent dataprovided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
FULL-TIME EOT]IVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

BY FT]NCTION/PROGRAM
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

ft]NAUDITED)

2013 2014 2ot5 2016

E)CIIBIT J-T6

2017 2018

FunctionlProgram

Instruction
Regular

Special education

Other special education

Vocational
Other instruction

Support Services:

Student & instruction related services

General administrative services

School administrative services

B usiness administrative services

Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation

Food Service

Total

Source: District Personnel Records

2t 24 3l

T2

2

aJ

I
2

t4
2

15

2

l9
2

J

2

J

20
z

I
z
5

z

10 ZJ 54



Fiscal

Year Enrollment Expenditures Pupil

201 8

2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCIIOOL OF LEADERSHIP
OPERATING STATISTICS

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

205 $

t99
197

199
180

145

Operating

2,921,852 S

2,786,974
2,489,013
2,491,310
2,178,331
1,863,7s7

Sources: District records. ASSA and Schedule J-14

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count.

Cost Per

14,253
14,005

12,635
12,519
12,102
12,8s3

a

b

Teaching

Staff

Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay; Schedule J-l
Teaching staff includes only fuIl-time equivalents of certificated staff.
Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School

Register Summary (SRS)

PupiV
Teacher

Ratio

20

27

23

t6
t4
10

Elem.

Average
Daily

Enrollment
(ApE) "

189.0

196.3

197.0

199.0

180.0

144.0

10:1

l1:01
12:01

12:01

l3:01
l4:01

Average
Daity

Attendance

(ADA) "

t78.7
188.3

186.8

190.0

166.0

t29.2

EXHIBIT J.17

%o Change in
Average Daily

Enrollment

-5.03%

-t.36%
-1.01%
1056%
25.00%

NA

Student
Attendance

Percentage

9457%
9592%
94.82%
9s.48%
92.22%
89.72%
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

EXHIBIT J-18

(UNAUDITED)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2011 2018

District Buildine

Elementarv

Square Feet 13,360 13,360 13,360 13,360 13,360 13,360

Capacity(students) 210 210 210 210 210 210
Enrollment 145 180 199 197 199 205

Other

Number ofSchools at June 30,2017
Elementary = 1

Source: District records, ASSA

Note: Year oforiginal construction is shown in parentheses. lncreases in square

footage and capacity are the result of any additions. Enrollment is based on the

annual October district count.
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KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

LAST F'IVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

EXHIBIT J-20

Lamb Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
Financial Group July l, 2017 - June 30, 2018:

Carolina Casualty

Insurance Group D&O / EPLI 1,000,000 5,000

Markel lnsurance

Company Package:

Commercial General Liability 3,000,000

Commercial Property 400,000 1,000

Crime 100.000 500

Markel lnsurance

Company Automobile

Markel lnsurance

Company Umbrella

1,000,000

5,000,000 1o,o0o

Rochdale lnsurance

Company Workers Compensation

Bodily injury by Accident 500,000

Bodily injury by Disease - Policy 500,000
Bodily injury by Disease - Per Employee 500,000

Hartford Ins

Company Student Accident
Accidental Death Benefit 10,000

Accidental Dismemberment Benefit 10,000

Accident Medical Expense Benefit 25,000

Deductible Amount
*Møx Dental Limit 1.000

Source: DistrictRecords



Cash

Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Depreciation Expense $

Interest Expense

Principal Payments

Interest Payments

Final Average Daily Enrollment

March 30th Budgeted Enrollment

1,304,694 t,594,416 I,538,389

80,260 358,822 10r,920

s20,221 413,811 226,s30

44,165

334,161
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KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - FISCAL RATIOS
JUNE 30.2018
(UNAUDITED)

2016 2017 2018

EXHIBIT J-21

Source

AudiÍ Exhibit A-1
AudiÍ Exhibit A-1

Audit Exhibit A-1

Audit: Exhibit A-1

Audir Exhibir A-l

Audir Exhibit A-l

Audir Exhibit A-2

Audit: Exhibit A-2

Audit: Exhibit A-2

Financial Statements/ Audit Worþapers
Financial Staternents/ Audit Worþapers
Financial Statements/ Audit Workpapers

Financial Statements/ Audit Worþapers

DOE Enrollment Reports

Charter School Budget

318,136

648,4s9
429,r34
599,31 I

$ 1,128,466 $ 1,207,823

3,043,043 $

2,907,948
3,345,383

3,266,026

s ___:2es,o7o

$ 3,400,832

3,313,581

135,095 $ 79,357 $

54 171

196
199

2017

87,25t

29,892

197

197

2016

55,958

189

205

2018

3 Year
Cumulative

Near Term Indicators
Current Ratio

Unrestricted Days Cash

Enrollment Variance

Defauh

Sustainability Indicators
Total Margin
Debt to Asset

Cash Flow
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

4.16

5.54

t00%
N/A

4%
0.40

(2s,371)
N/A

2.5t
35.55

99%
N/A

2%
0.26

273,971
N/A

5.88

47.27

92%
N/A

3%

0.15

110,998

N/A

2.92

30.45

97%
N/A

3%

0.26

I 10,998

N/A

Current Assets/ Cunent Liabilities
Cash/ (Total Expenses/365)

\verage Daily Enrollment / Budgeted Enrollmen
Audit

Change in Net Positior/ Total Revenue

Total Liabilities/ Total Assets

Net change in cash flow from prior years

(Chanse in Net Position Interest Expense)

(Principal & Interest Pal.rnents)



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



EXHIBIT K-l

991 S. Black Horse Pike
P.O. Box 799

Williamstown, NJ 08094

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A Professionøl Assocíøtíon

Certified Public Accountants
(856) 629-3111

Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colavito.net

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a

a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN ATIDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDAI\CE WITH
GOVERNMENT ATIDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AIIDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of
The Board of Trustees

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
County of Camden, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the f,rnancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the of Education of the
Kingdom Charter School of Leadership School District, in the County of Camden, State of New Jersey, as of and

for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the of Education of the Kingdom Charter School of Leadership School District's basic financial statements, and

have issued our report thereon dated January 25,2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reportine

Ír planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The Kingdom Charter School of
Leadership Board of Trustees' intemal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of
Trustees' intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Kingdom Charter
School of Leadership Board of Trustees' internal control.

A defi.ciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fi.rnctions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis.

A, material wealcness

reasonable possibility
lSa
that

detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance. We considered the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs to be significant, labeled Finding 20 1 8- 1 .
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Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identiff all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identifred. Given
these limitations, during ow audit we did not identiff any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

The Kinedom Charter School of Leadership Board of Trustees' Response to Findings

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of Trustees' response to the findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Their response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of
Trustees' financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance, or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
Board of Trustees, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOL PA

Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

Januarv 25.2019

NIGHTUNGER. COTAVTTA 6¿ VOTPA A P rofessío n a I Assoc iotÍo n Certified Public Accountants



NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A Profe ssionøl Associatio n

Certified Public Accountants
991 S. Black Horce Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQT]IRED BY

T]NIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCTILAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Trustees
The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
County of Camden, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal and State Program

We have audited the Board of Trustees of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership, in the County of Camden, State of
New Jersey, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the

New Jersey State Aid/Grqnt Compliance Supplement thal could have a direct and material effect on each of the The

Kingdom Charter School of Leadership's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The The

Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of Trustees' major federal and state programs are identified in the summary
of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditorf s Responsibilify

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
Board of Education's major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, Uniform
Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state progrcm occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of Trustees'

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state

program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Kingdom Charter School of Leadership Board of
Education's compliance.

EXHIBIT K.2

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colovÍtø.net
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Opinion on Each Maior Program

In our opinion, the Board of Trustees of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership, in the County of Camden, State

of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state progtams for the fiscal year ended June

30,2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Kingdom Charter School of Leadership School District's Board of Education is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
refered to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Kingdom Charter School of
Leadership Board of Education's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal or state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal or state program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Treasury 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership
Board of Trustees' internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exisls when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material
wealcness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance; such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identit/ all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB 15-08.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, The Kingdom Charter
School of Leadership Board of Trustees, the New Jersey State Department of Education, other state awarding agencies

and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

NI ER. COLAVITA & VOLPA. PA

Public School Accountant
No.915

January 25,2019

A P rof e ssio n a I Associatio nNIGHTUNGER. COTAVITA 8¿ VOTPA Certif ied Public Accountants



Federal Grantor/Pass-Through G
Grantor/ Prosrrm Title

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed-though State Department of Education:
Enterprise Fund:

Child Nutrition Cluster:
Cash Assistance:

National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
School Breakfast Program

School Breakfast Program

School Breakfast ProBram

Federal
CFDA

Number

Budg€tary
Grant Program Expenditures Total

Federal or or Balanceat Carryover Pass Budg€tary Budgetary BalânceatJune30,20l8
FAIN Stat€ Project Award Grant Period June 30, (rüalkover) Cash Through Expenditures Exp€nditures (Accounts Unearned Due to

Number Number Amount From To 2017 Amount Received Funds Direct (A) Adjustment Receivable) Revenue Grântor

Total Enterprise Fund:

U.S. Department of Education
Passed-through State Department of Education:
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (SCHEDULE A)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

Special Revenue Fund

E.S.E.A.
Title I Paft A

IDEA Cluster:
IDEA Basic
IDEA Basíc

10.5s5 181NJ304N1099
10.555 171NJ304N1099
10.555 16161NJ304N1099
10.5s3 181NJ304N1099

10.5s3 171NJ304N1099

10.553 l6l6NJ304Nl099

Total Federal Financial Awards

(A) There were no awüds pæsed through to subrecipients

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

84.010 S010A170030

84.027 H027A170100
84.027 H027A1ó0100

$52,507
48,230

27,811
30,08s

27,334

9,026

7/1117 to 6/30118
7/1116ro 6130117 S (1,085)

7lll15to6130116 (1,932)
7lll17 to6/30118
7/ll16to6/30117 (962)

7/1115 to6130116 (493)

These fi.ìnds were not audited in accordance with the Uniform Guidance since the total ofall grant expenditures did not exceed $?50,000.

NCLB6067l8 71.s63 711117-6/30118

IDEA6067l8 38,573 7/1/17-6/30n8
tDEA6067t7 37.233 7t1/16-6/30^7

(4,472)

g 49,779
1,085
I S?t

28,154

962

493

$ (52,507)

(30,085)

82,405

(406)

s (4,878)

(406)

(82,s92)

EXHIBIT K-3

71,563

38,573
406

$ (52,507)

(30,08s)

fi0j42 (110,136) _ (110,136)

s192,947 S(192,728) S(1e2,728) $ (4,659)

(?1,563)

(38,573)

(82,592)

$ (2,?28)

(1,93 r )

(?r,563)

(38,573)

(4,6s9)



State Grantor/Program Title

State Depårtment of Education

General Fund

Equalization Aid
Equalization Aid
Equalization Aid
Special Education
Special Education
Security Aid
Security Aid
Security Aid
Adjustment Aid
Adjustment Aid
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contrib.
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contrib.

Total General Fund

State Department of Agriculture

Enterprise Fund - State Share:

State School Lunch Program
State School Lunch Program

Total State Department of Agriculture

State Department of Humsn Services

New Jersey Child Care Assistance Program
New Jersey Child Care Assistance Program

Total State Department of Human Services

91 -

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OFLEADERSHIP

Gr¡nt or State
Proiect Number

t8-495-034-5120-078
t7 -495-034-5120-078
l6-495-034-5120-078
I 8-495-034-5 1 20-089
l7 -495-034-5120-089
I 8-495-034-5120-084
t7 -495-034-5120-084
I 6-495-034-5 I 20-084
l8-495-034-5 120-085

I 7-495-034-5 120-085

I 8-495-034-5094-003
t7 -495-034-5095-002

Program
or

Award
Amount

Unearned
Grant Period Revenue
From To (Accts, Rec.)

S1,341,309 7/l/17 to 6/30/18
1,346,770 7l1l16to 6/301t7
1,255,746 7/1/15 to 6/30116

73,442 7/1/17 to 6/30118
62,s47 7/1/16 to 6/30117
31,811 7/1/17 to6/30118
29,815 7/1/16ro 6/30/17
22,860 7/1/15 to 6/30/16
22,572 7/1/17 to 6/30118

52,707 7/1/16 to 6130117

91,390 711/17 to 6130/18

65.381 7/1/16 to 6130/17

Total State Financial Assistance Subiect to OMB l5-08

State Financial Assistance Not Subject to OMB l5-08

On-Behalf TPAF Post Retirement Medical 18-495-034-5094-001
On-BehalfTPAFPensionContribution l8-495-034-5094-002
On-behalf TPAF l.ong-Term Disability I 8-495-034-5094-004

Total State Financial Assistance

Balance at June 30,
2017

I 8-l 00-0r 0-3350-023
l7-l 00-01 0-3350-023

Due to Cash Budgetary
D¡strict Received Expenditures

$ 1,214,510

$ (208,985) $12,323 208,985
(10,677) 10,677

62,518
(7,192) 5,661 7,192

29,954
(s,598) st2 s,s98
(193) 193

2,993
(32,442) 32,442

86,378
(17) t7

unknown
unknown

(26s,104)

7/1/l'7 to 6/30/18
7/1/16 to 6/30/17 (21)

(21)

I,008
906

The accompanfng Notes to the Financial statements and Notes to the Schedules ofExpenditures ofFederal

Unearned
(AccountsReceivable) Revenue/

PaymenU From From Interfund Due to
Adjustment Districts St¡te Payable District

s (t26,799)
$ (12,323)

(10,924)
(s,66 1 )

(l,857)
(512)

(t9,s79)

$ (s,012)

30,620 Tllll'l to 6/30118

18,507 7llll6to6/30117

$(1,341,309)

(73,442)

(31,81 1)

(22,s72)

(9 1,390)

18,496

Balance at June 30, 2018

EXHIBITK-4

64,531 711117 to 6/30118
99,912 7lll17 to 6/30118

756 7/l/17 to 6/30118

t,66t,457 (1,s60,s24)

(e3)

(e3)

$ (26s,218) $18,496 $1,692,400 $(r,s92,152) $(18,496) $ (1s9,9s8) $ (s,012)

955

2t

976

(r,008)

(18,496) (159,1s9) (s,012)

(l,008)

(30,620)29,874
93

29,967

$ 64,531

99,912
756

(30,620)

(53)

(746)

$1,857,599 $(1,757,3s1)

Awards and State Financial Assistance are an integral part ofthis schedule.

(s3)

$ (64,s31)
(99,912)

(7s6)

(746',)
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JUNE 30.2019

NOTE 1: @NERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of all federal
and state award programs of the Board of Trustees, The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership. The board of
trustees is defined in Note I to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly
from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other
government agencies are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented using the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 2 to the Board's basic
financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR
200- Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and New
Jersey OMB 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The Charter School has elected not to use the lO-percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary
comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to
demonstrate f,rnance related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be

recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or
expenditures have been made (GASB 34).

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis. The special revenue fund
is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting basis, which recognizes encumbrances as

expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.

There was no net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis for the special revenue fund.
See Note 1 for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue fund. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a
GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Before and After Care Fund

Food Service Fund

Total Awards & Financial Assistance

30,620

82,592 1,008

$$
1 10,136

1,725,723 S 1,725,723

1 10,136

30,620

83,600

s 192,728 $ 7,757,35r $ r,950,079
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EXHIBIT K-5

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINAITICIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state
financial reports.

NOTE 5: FEDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING

The Kingdom Charter School of Leadership had no outstanding loans at June 30, 2018.

NOTE 6: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received and
current year distributions respectively. The amount reported if any as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the
amount paid by the state on behalf of the Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF Social Security
Contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social security contributions
for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 7: SCHOOL-WIDE PROGRAM FUNDS

The District's Federal Programs are on a school-wide programs in the District.

NOTE 8: MAJOR PROGRAMS

Major programs are identif,red in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section of the Schedule of Findings and

Questioned Cost.

NOTE 9: ADJUSTMENTS

There were no adjustments in Schedule A or Schedule B for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Modified: Oualified for GAAP Departure

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identif,red?

Noncompliance material to basic
f,rnancial statements noted?

Federal Awards N/A

yes X no

EXHIBIT K.6

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit hndings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section
.st6(a)?

Identification of major programs:

X yes

N/A

none
reported

yes X no

yes X no
none

Yes X reported

Xnoyes

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Prosram or Cluster

N/A

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: N/A

Auditee qualif,red as low-risk auditee? yes no
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditorrs Results (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and ty,.pe B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

lntemal control over major programs:

yes X no

yes Xno

EXHIBIT K.6

none
reported

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? yes X

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJOMB
Circular Letter 15-08 ves X no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

18-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
18-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
18-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
18-495-034-5120-085 Adiustment Aid
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018
(continued)

EXIIIBIT K-7

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weakness, fraud, noncompliance with provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for which
Government Auditing Standards requires reporting and with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office
of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey that requires reporting in the Uniform
Guidance, New Jersey OMB Treasury Circular 15-08 audit.

Findine: 20L8-L

Criteria or specifTc requirement:
Proper internal control dictates that where detailed information is not accurately reflected in the General
Ledger, adjusting journal entries should be recorded on a timely basis.

Condition:
Revenue from the various Sending Districts, as recorded in a subsidiary worksheet, included various effors
requiring adjustment as part of the audit. This included certain formula effors in the worksheet, of which the
result was inconsistent subtotals.

Context:
Several Sending District accounts receivable balances, as reflected in the General Ledger, were not in
agreement with the subsidiary worksheet at June 30, 2018.

Effect:
Additional audit procedures were necessary to veriff the accuracy of various accounts receivable balances
reflected in the District's General Ledger.

Cause:
Inadvertent oversight

Recommendation:
Procedures to record revenue from the various Sending Districts within the subsidiary worksheet should be
reviewed and revised, in order to provide accurate revenue and accounts receivable balances per District.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:
Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated and followed.
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THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(continued)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies audit findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the Uniform
Admínístrative Requirements, Cost principles, and Audít Requirements for Federal Awards andNJOMB
Circular Letter 15-08, as applicable.

FEDERAL A\üARDS N/A

Findine:
Information on the federal proqram:
Criteria or specific requirement:
Condition:
Ouestioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Views of responsible officials and planned corrctive actions:

STATE AWARDS

Findine: N/A
Information on the state program:
Criteria or specifïc requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Managementf s response:
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EXHIBIT K.8

THE KINGDOM CHARTER SCHOOL OF LEADERSHIP
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

This section identifies the status of prior - year findings related to the basic financial statements and Federal
and State awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing
Standards, US OMB Uniþrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Princíples, and Audít Requirements for
Federal Awards section.511(a)(b) and New Jersey OMB's Treasury Circular 04-04 andlor 15-08, as

applicable.

STATUS OF PRIOR - YEAR FINDINGS

Findine: 2017-1

Condition:
The Charter School does not appear to have sufficiently detailed written internal procedures, with respect to
designating persorurel assigned to enrollment counts. In addition, the revised enrollment system report was
not presented in a format to sufficiently determine final student counts and classifications.

Current Status: Resolved

Findine: 2017-2

Condition:
The Capital Outlay section of the General Fund Budget contained numerous expenditures that did not meet
the criteria of a capital purchase, thus requiring reclassification to appropriate operating budget line items.

Current Status: Resolved


